
 Site Visit Questions and Answers, July 25 2014 

 (Note: questions are in the order they were asked) 

 

Q1.  When was the library last renovated/had work done performed? 

A:   The public spaces of the Library were last renovated in 1990. The office space was renovated in 

2005. The adjoining computer center portion of the Library was constructed in 2005. 

 

Q2. Is there offsite storage? 

A: Only for donated books, which are sold by the Friends of the Library. The storage space is 8’ by 10’. 

 

Q.3. How many full time staff support the Library? 

A: The Library has four full-time librarians and one part-time librarian. We have three full-time library 

assistants  and two part-time library assistants plus a part-time shelver.  The Library also has a pool of 

substitutes which are used as needed. 

 

Q4: What are the space needs for programs? 

A. Flexible space is needed for programs hosted by the Library; we do most programs in the Library 

because it is a controllable space and because it can accommodate audiences of moderate and small 

size (up to 50 people), and finally because programs bring people into the Library. 

 

Q5. Are the heating/cooling systems adequate? 

A.We  are providing a list of the various HVAC equipment, their capacity and their age as part of the 

additional information on the web-site with the RFP. 

 

Q6. Is the Men’s Room ADA compliant? 

A:  The City does not have anyone on staff who can verify what the compliance requirements are and 

whether or not the Library meets them.  

Q7. How do you manage the computer services? Is everything in the cloud? 



A.The Library uses a Userful  system for the public computers;  an ILS system is based off  a separate 

server managed by the  City ‘s  IT staff.  

Q.8 Are there archives that need to be housed in the library? 

A.. We have some specific local history material materials, but the main archive is not at the Library and 

instead at a local historic organization, and the Library’s purpose isn’t to store archival materials. 

 

Q9. What kind of connection to the server does the ILS have? 

A. It’s a fiber cable Ethernet connection. 

 

Q10. What are the library’s criteria for weeding books? 

A. Criteria include circulation, condition, and in certain areas date of publication. 

 

Q11. Is the trend towards less books borrowed per patron? 

A. No specific data to support a response, however, from anecdotal  information the opposite is 

probably true, especially for children’s books 

 

Q12. Can you break out circulation figures by category, i.e. adult, children, teens 

A.We have the capability to break out circulation figures for juvenile and adult materials 

 

Q13. How many staff work in the main office area? 

A. Eight (includes Director of Library) 

 

Q14. Do you do much inter-library loan? 

A.. Only infrequently. 

 

Q15. Any concerns about patron security exiting or entering the Library ? 

A. No immediate problems. Lighting surrounding the building could be improved. 



 

Q16. Is there excess capacity in the Community Center to support additional expansion of the Library? 

A. The building is getting increasingly actively used. There could be some excess capacity, but it’s getting 

increasingly competitive. 

 

Q17. The library seems to be very dense in using its space? 

A. We use everything we have. 

 

Q18. Is the Computer Center  part of the library? 

A. Yes, the Library manages rooms A& B, plus the office. The Library also manages  four computers in 

the Senior Room near rooms A & B. In addition, the central hallway space in the Computer Center and 

adjacent hallways leading to the Computer Center are able to be better utilized. 

 

Q19. How busy are the computer rooms? 

A: Most of the time they are busy with patrons, but rarely do we not have adequate space.  We are 

seeing  more people  bring their own computers and using the City’s  Wifi, and they are looking for 

spaces to set up their computers and work here. 

 

Q20. How far back down the hallways can we consider as possible space for any planning purposes? 

A .The adjacent hallways to the computer rooms leading back to the Community Center can be 

considered as possible space for any planning purposes. 

 

Q21. What are you looking for out of this study? 

A:  A number of items including: 1)Ideas for how to better utilize the space; 2)Ideas for increased space 

for Library activities; 3)better circulation for staff member office space in the Library; 4)optimal 

circulation desk usage; 5)better storage options; 6)multi-purpose furniture ideas;  7) Other 

considerations as described under the scope of services in the RFP. 

 

Q22: Can you provide us with a copy of the sign-in sheet? 



A: Yes, it will be posted on our website.  

Q23:  Are there any additional documents (i.e.drawings) that can be provided on the Library? 

 A.Yes, we have posted a number of additional documents and drawings of the existing library on our 

website.  

 

Q24. Can you tell us more about the feasibility of the optional expansion? 

A. The optional item in the RFP should be priced out separately in bidders responses to this solicitation.  

The City may at a later date determine it would like to execute this optional item.  The purpose for this 

optional item is to have a price proposal from bidders for how they would assess expanding the 

footprint of the library by adding space external to the existing building.   

 

Q25. Are you looking for a concept design or a complete set of biddable designs or something in the 

middle? 

A:  The City is seeking a concept designs with enough detail and factual basis to be used as a starting 

point for more complete designs at a later date.  Concept designs that are structurally or from an 

architecture perspective infeasible will not be sufficient.   It is not the intent of the City to have these 

concept designs be used for biddable drawings.  

 

Q26: Do you want scale drawings of the building and furniture? 

A.: Yes, Ultimately we would like as much information as possible to help in securing future funding for 

the next phases of the Library renovation. Having feasible options around the building and furniture will 

be helpful in accomplishing this task. 

 

Q27: Do you want us to include an MEP consultant on our team? 

A: This will be up to bidders to determine, see answer to Q25. The Library building has not had a MEP 

assessment.   

 

Q28: Is there a possibility of a new library building being built instead of a renovation? 

A. No, there is not that option for this study. 

 



Q29: For references in the solicitation, do you want total contract amount of the project or the fee for 

completing the project? 

A.Total contract amount of the project only. The intent is to evaluate whether offerors have completed 

projects of similar size and scope. 

 

Q30: Are you looking for energy efficiency in this plan? 

E: Yes, definitely.  

 

Q31. Can the existing flood wall outside the Library be moved? 

A. Yes, it is a small wall. 

 

 

 


